CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION AGENDA
Thursday, March 12, 2026

415 DIAMOND STREET, REDONDO BEACH

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMISSION - 6:30
PM

ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS HAVE RESUMED IN THE CITY COUNCIL
CHAMBER. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE IN-PERSON,
BY ZOOM, EMAIL OR eCOMMENT.

Budget and Finance Commission meetings are broadcast live through Spectrum Cable,
Channel 8, and Frontier Communications, Channel 41. Live streams and indexed archives of
meetings are available via internet. Visit the City’s office website at www.Redondo.org/rbtv.

TO WATCH MEETING LIVE ON CITY'S WEBSITE:
https://redondo.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
*Click "In Progress" hyperlink under Video section of meeting

TO WATCH MEETING LIVE ON YOUTUBE:
https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofRedondoBeachIT

TO JOIN ZOOM MEETING (FOR PUBLIC COMMENT ONLY):

Register in advance for this meeting:
https://www.zoomgov.com/webinar/register/WN_WvcYPJOXT_q9ZkYTF4gRjg

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the
meeting.

If you are participating by phone, be sure to provide your phone # when registering. You will
be provided a Toll Free number and a Meeting ID to access the meeting. Note; press # to
bypass Participant ID. Attendees will be muted until the public participation period is opened.
When you are called on to speak, press *6 to unmute your line. Note, comments from the
public are limited to 3 minutes per speaker.

eCOMMENT: COMMENTS MAY BE ENTERED DIRECTLY ON WEBSITE AGENDA PAGE:
https://redondo.granicusideas.com/meetings

1) Public comments can be entered before and during the meeting.

2) Select a SPECIFIC AGENDA ITEM to enter your comment;

3) Public will be prompted to Sign-Up to create a free personal account (one-time) and then
comments may be added to each Agenda item of interest.

4) Public comments entered into eComment (up to 2200 characters; equal to approximately 3
minutes of oral comments) will become part of the official meeting record.

EMAIL: TO PARTICIPATE BY WRITTEN COMMUNICATION WITH ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS BEFORE 3PM DAY OF MEETING:

Written materials that include attachments pertaining to matters listed on the posted agenda
received after the agenda has been published will be added as supplemental materials under



the relevant agenda item. financemail@redondo.org

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMISSION - 6:30
PM

CALL MEETING TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
SALUTE TO THE FLAG

oo wp

APPROVE ORDER OF AGENDA
E. BLUE FOLDER ITEMS - ADDITIONAL BACK UP MATERIALS

Blue folder items are additional back up material to administrative reports and/or public comments received after
the printing and distribution of the agenda packet for receive and file.

E.1. For Blue Folder Documents Approved at the Budget and Finance Commission Meeting

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

Business items, except those formally noticed for public hearing, or discussion are assigned to the Consent
Calendar. The Commission Members may request that any Consent Calendar item(s) be removed, discussed,
and acted upon separately. Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be taken up under the “Excluded
Consent Calendar” section below. Those items remaining on the Consent Calendar will be approved in one
motion following Oral Communications.

F.1. APPROVAL OF AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING FOR THE REGULAR BUDGET AND
FINANCE COMMISSION MEETING OF MARCH 12, 2026

F.2. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 12,
2026

G. EXCLUDED CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS
H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

This section is intended to provide members of the public with the opportunity to comment on any subject that
does not appear on this agenda for action. This section is limited to 30 minutes. Each speaker will be afforded
three minutes to address the Commission. Each speaker will be permitted to speak only once. Written requests, if
any, will be considered first under this section.

H.1. For eComments and Emails Received from the Public

. ITEMS CONTINUED FROM PREVIOUS AGENDAS
J. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION PRIOR TO ACTION

J.1. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING FY 2025-26 MIDYEAR
BUDGET

CONTACT: STEPHANIE MEYER, FINANCE DIRECTOR

J.2. DISCUSSION REGARDING THE CIP SUBCOMMITTEE ACTIVITY
CONTACT: STEPHANIE MEYER, FINANCE DIRECTOR



https://redondo.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=13028
https://redondo.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=13026
https://redondo.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=13027
https://redondo.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=13025
https://redondo.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=13010
https://redondo.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=13031

J.3. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING INPUT AND SUGGESTIONS
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL'S CONSIDERATION DURING THE UPCOMING
STRATEGIC PLANNING SESSION

CONTACT: STEPHANIE MEYER, FINANCE DIRECTOR

K. COMMISSION MEMBER ITEMS AND FUTURE COMMISSION AGENDA TOPICS
L. ADJOURNMENT

The next meeting of the Redondo Beach Budget and Finance Commission will be a reqular meeting to be held at
6:30 p.m. on April 23, 2026, in the Redondo Beach Council Chambers, at 415 Diamond Street, Redondo Beach,
California.

It is the intention of the City of Redondo Beach to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in all
respects. If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting you will need special assistance beyond what is
normally provided, the City will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner. Please contact the City
Clerk's Office at (310) 318-0656 at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible. Please advise us at that time if you will need
accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis.

An agenda packet is available 24 hours at www.redondo.org under the City Clerk.


https://redondo.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=13030

Administrative
Report

E.1., File # BF26-0332 Meeting Date: 3/12/2026

TITLE
For Blue Folder Documents Approved at the Budget and Finance Commission Meeting

Page 1 of 1



Administrative
Report

F.1., File # BF26-0330 Meeting Date: 3/12/2026

TITLE

APPROVAL OF AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING FOR THE REGULAR BUDGET AND FINANCE
COMMISSION MEETING OF MARCH 12, 2026

Page 1 of 1



Financial Services

REDONDO 415 Diamond Street Tel: 310.318.0683
- BEACH Redondo Beach CA 90277
Redondo.org
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) SS
CITY OF REDONDO BEACH )

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

In compliance with the Brown Act, the following materials have been posted at the loca-
tions indicated below.

Legislative Body Budget and Finance Commission
Posting Type Regular Meeting Agenda
Posting Locations 415 Diamond Street, Redondo Beach, CA 90277

v' Adjacent to Council Chambers
v City Clerk’s Counter, Door “1”

Meeting Date & Time March 12, 2026 6:30 p.m.

As the Finance Director of the City of Redondo Beach, | declare, under penalty of perjury,
the document noted above was posted at the date displayed below.

Stephanie Meyer, Finance Director
Budget and Finance Commission

Date: March 9, 2026




Administrative
Report

F.2., File # BF26-0331 Meeting Date: 3/12/2026

TITLE
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 12, 2026

Page 1 of 1



City of Redondo Beach — Regular Meeting
Budget & Finance Commission - Minutes
Thursday, February 12, 2026

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMISSION - 6:30 P.M.

A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

A Regular Meeting of the Redondo Beach Budget and Finance Commission was called
to order at 6:30 p.m. by Chair Woodham, in the City Hall Council Chambers, 415 Diamond
Street, Redondo Beach, California.

B. ROLL CALL
Commissioners Present: Marin, Jeste, Allen, Sherbin, Turner, Chair Woodham
Commissioners Absent: Ramcharan

Officials Present: Eugene Solomon, City Treasurer
Stephanie Meyer, Finance Director
Jacob Kamsvaag, Administrative Analyst

C. SALUTE TO THE FLAG
Chair Woodham led in the salute to the flag.
D. APPROVE ORDER OF AGENDA

Motion by Commissioner Marin, seconded by Commissioner Jeste, to approve the order
of the agenda as presented.

Motion carried 6-0-1 by voice vote. Commissioner Ramcharan was absent.
E. BLUE FOLDER ITEMS - ADDITIONAL BACK UP MATERIALS

E.1. For Blue Folder Documents Approved at the Budget and Finance
Commission Meeting

Analyst Kamsvaag reported three Blue Folder items for J.2.

Motion by Commissioner Allen, seconded by Commissioner Sherbin, to receive and file
the Blue Folder items.

Motion carried 6-0-1 by voice vote. Commissioner Ramcharan was absent.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 1



F. CONSENT CALENDAR

F.1. APPROVAL OF AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING FOR THE REGULAR BUDGET AND
FINANCE COMMISSION MEETING OF FEBRUARY 12, 2026

F.2. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY
8, 2026

Chair Woodham commented that they appreciated receiving the minutes from the last
meeting prior to that evening’s meeting so they could review the discussions from the
prior meeting.

Motion by Commissioner Marin, seconded by Commissioner Sherbin, to approve the
Consent Calendar as written.

Motion carried 6-0-1 by voice vote. Commissioner Ramcharan was absent.

G. EXCLUDED CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS - None

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

H.1. For eComments and Emails Received from the Public

Analyst Kamsvaag reported no one online and no eComments.

l. ITEMS CONTINUED FROM PREVIOUS AGENDAS - None

J. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION PRIOR TO ACTION

J.1. CITY TREASURER’S SECOND QUARTER, FISCAL YEAR 2025-26 REPORT
CONTACT: EUGENE SOLOMON, CITY TREASURER

City Treasurer Solomon stated they have the regularly scheduled reporting for the
Commission for the second quarter of FY 2025 report.

Nilesh Mehta reported that he was also online.

City Treasurer Solomon provided a Treasurer’s Report for Redondo Beach presentation;
reported that the Treasurer’s Portfolio Summary, Investment Reporting Guidelines, and
report by Meeder Investments were are included in their packets; stated that they would
review the investment policy reporting objectives and guidelines, policy compliance,
guarterly performance, cash flow analysis, maturity distribution, trading activity, and the
fiscal impacts; listed the key investments objectives as: safety (protect the principal),
liquidity, and yield (to maximize earnings but with safety and liquidity in mind); stated they
always need to remember that it is the community’s money and they need to act
accordingly in a responsible stewardship capacity; stated it should never be an

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 2



investment manager’s goal to earn maximum returns on the City’s portfolio since that
would expose the City to an unacceptable level of risk; reported that failures occur in
public investing when: policies are not clear, policies are inappropriate, policies are not
followed, or oversight is inadequate; went over questions an investment manager should
ask to make sure what they are providing is clear and understandable; reported that staff
are providing monthly investment reports to everyone on the Commission via their City
email so if anyone is not receiving them they should let him know; showed the City’s policy
compliance matrix and noted that the non-compliant segment section has a glitch or a
feature of Clearwater where it is not recognizing the City’s compliance was based on the
concentration at the time the securities were purchased; stated that the City is in
compliance with their investment policy but the Clearwater feature does not recognize the
manner in which it is set up; noted that the Commission will likely see that change in their
next quarter as the City’s investments change.

Chair Woodham asked about the maturity date of that bond.

City Treasurer Solomon responded that the bond matures this spring (June 2026), but
with the cash flow changes, they will also see a change in the amount they have there;
moved to the City’s performance and second quarter, highlighted some of the areas the
City has cash: banks, money market, CAMP, LAIF, agency issues, medium term notes,
and treasuries; reported the total investment portfolio is up from the first quarter at
$79,848, 030; stated the portfolio effective rate of return is 3.28, the LAIF yield is 3.97,
and the benchmark being 4.25.

Chair Woodham asked, on the effective rate of return, is that coupon income versus book
value.

City Treasurer Solomon stated he was correct.

Chair Woodham asked if they ever have a huge difference between the actual rate of
return based on market value.

City Treasurer Solomon stated that they focus on the book value but they do analyze it
as a component; continued with his presentation and showed the interest earned year-
to-date at $1,074,643, noted the target General Fund contribution for the year for all four
quarters is $1.5 million; reported year to date between the first quarter and the second
quarter, they are $990,000 of that goal; went over previous years and stated they are on
par with interest earned year to date and with their General Fund contribution; briefly
reviewed the cash flow analysis, sector allocation, maturity distribution, and fiscal impact;
summarized that the year to date interest earned was $1,074,634, General Fund
contribution is 60% or $644,781, and the other 40% goes into pooled cash.

Chair Woodham confirmed that the 60% is an approximate figure and can vary; asked
City Treasurer Solomon who owns the other 40% and asked if they have a spreadsheet
showing who owns the actual dollar amount of the $80 million investment funds.

City Treasurer Solomon stated they can present a breakdown to them as they have
before; asked Nilesh Mehta to provide some input.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 3

10



Nilesh Mehta responded that it is correct, 40% is allocated to the various other funds and
60% is towards the General Fund and City staff base it on the General Fund since they
budget from the $1.5 million over investment activity.

Finance Director Meyer added that the other funds in the City’s pooled cash that receive
investment income are the Enterprise Funds such as: Tidelands, Uplands, Transit,
Wastewater, and Internal Service Funds.

Chair Woodham questioned the report always stating 60% and 40% when it is never
exactly at 60%.

Finance Director Meyer said he is correct and that is why, when they do the interest
allocation, they do it based on the actual balance; stated staff would be able to get the
Commission the actual percentage information if needed but it is roughly correct.

Chair Woodham said it would be interesting to know who the owners of the other 40%
are other than the General Fund.

City Treasurer Solomon said he could provide that to him at their next presentation.

Commissioner Allen asked if Enterprise Fund means funds that the City receives for
services the City provides from their customers.

Finance Director Meyer stated the City’s most traditional fund is their Wastewater Fund
or Sewer Fund because it is based on ratepayers; clarified that the Tidelands and Uplands
funds are managed through Enterprise Funds, but they are primarily funded through lease
revenue.

Commissioner Allen asked if the City subsidizes any of the funds.

Finance Director Meyer responded that the City does not regularly subsidize any of those
funds but will sometimes subsidize on a one-time basis the Tidelands and Uplands funds.

More discussion followed and Director Meyer spoke about special revenue funds which
are funded by grants and other sources.

Commissioner Allen stated she is thinking out loud and wondering why they don'’t just
leave the 40% in the General Funds and explained her reasoning.

Finance Director Meyer said she would have to look into the rules surrounding the
revenue in the City’s Enterprise Funds because generally speaking the revenue
generated from those funds can only be used for those funds.

More discussion followed.

Chair Woodham added the concept to keep in mind is the investment portfolio that the
City Treasurer manages is a combination of the excess funds from several different
entities and there are several different owners of that.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 4

11



Commissioner Marin asked where they are projecting the City’s end balance to be in the
4t quarter in terms of the total portfolio balance.

City Treasurer Solomon stated it depends on a lot of factors that they can project but he
couldn’t say with certainty due to fluctuations they sometimes see, for example from
property taxes in December; went into more detail on types of fluctuations they may see
depending on time of year.

More discussion followed.

Commissioner Allen commented that it looks like they will not have any funds to invest
through December.

City Treasurer Solomon responded that they just received some funds from a
reimbursement from a lawsuit and some other funds which they invested and they
purchased two securities in the past month.

More discussion followed. City Treasurer Solomon showed that they have some US
Treasuries maturing and stated they will have opportunity to reinvest those funds over the
next quarter and then analyze what the City’s cash flow is like; noted that they will see
the trade tickets and transactions for the securities purchased in the Monthly Report they
receive.

Commissioner Marin asked if they anticipate keeping a decent amount in LAIF going
forward.

City Treasurer Solomon said he could see it being more LAIF focused right now
considering the inversion that happened between CAMP rates and LAIF rates; continued
with the presentation and moved onto the Investment Report; provided observations and
expectations they have for the past year; noted that the Chairman of the Federal Reserve
spoke of two .25% basis point cuts in 2026, the Chairman’s current term is expiring, and
a new nominee had been selected; went over Bloomberg’s predictions for a slowing of
GDP for Q4 of 2025 and a climb in inflation for 2026, spoke about the yield curve rate,
mentioned the securities they purchased are running a bit short but will probably improve
over the duration, and showed a summary of the City’s portfolio overview; provided a slide
with the City’s compliance overview; stated they are restricted on what they can buy due
to their investment policy and government code; stated their preference is to look for AA
or better rated securities; provided a slide with a summary of the City’s holdings, noted
that the Commission receives the reports on a monthly basis where they can review, see
where the holdings are, what the yield maturity is, what the unrealized gain or loss might
be based on book value, and what the breakdown is between LAIF and CAMP; concluded
with some slides of breakdowns of the projected cash flows coming from the investments
the City has.

Chair Woodham referenced the report sent with the agenda which showed a slide of the
balances in checking accounts for General Fund and all the other entities and asked if
the City is earning interest on the balances or are they just transaction balances.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 5

12



City Treasurer Solomon responded that some of them earn interest; stated they took the
advice from the Commission and for areas where they have an opportunity with Housing
Authority or Financing Authority they are able to earn interest; stated for some of the funds
it is not available for them to do that, such as the Workers’ Comp Fund.

Chair Woodham opined that $21 million in a checking account seems high and wondered
if there was any way to reduce that.

Nilesh Mehta explained that Bank of America charges a very hefty monthly account
analysis fee for having their accounts so the City has taken a portion of the monies to
offset the fees and then the remaining portion earns about 3%; stated that it is
recommended that they keep about $9 million in the checking account just for cash flow
purposes; reported that they did follow the Commission’s recommendation and they did
some transfers into LAIF to earn a higher yield but explained that the Bank of America
fees account for about $90,000 to $100,000 annually but they have avoided paying those
fees by utilizing the high balances; commented that is a big benefit to the Finance
Department because they do not see those fees as an expense.

Chair Woodham asked how the funds are redeemed from the accounts, how are they
spent, and what controls does the City have to ensure that none of the money leaves and
goes with a person to Mexico.

City Treasurer Solomon said they have a series of internal controls and two signatories
are required for everything; reported that if an AP is necessary, they would receive a
notification from the Finance Dept. along with the invoice or bill, his department would
review it, approve it, and the money would be transferred into an account to pay the
invoice or bill; stated there are internal controls going back to Finance to make certain the
funds were allocated to that AP.

Chair Woodham confirmed that the person requesting the money is never the person who
can redeem the security.

City Treasurer Solomon responded that he was correct.

Commissioner Turner commented that Bank of America and Chase Bank are considered
fee heavy; asked what the City’s process is in benchmarking which bank they are using,
and does the City go out and get competitive bids from banks to make sure they are
remaining competitive.

City Treasurer Solomon responded that they do get bids; explained that every 2 to 3 years
they go through a Request for Information process where they go out to a variety of
different banks with the services they need and ask the banks to come back with their
best pricing; reported that they had gone through the RFI a couple of years ago and 4 to
5 vendors wanted to work with them and they were able to increase their Earned Credit
Rate from 1.75 to 3.75, which is the offset they need for the banking fees.

Motion by Commissioner Allen, seconded by Commissioner Turner, to receive and file
the report.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 6

13



Analyst Kamsvaag reported no eComments and no one online.
Motion carried 6-0-1 by voice vote. Commissioner Ramcharan was absent.
J.2. FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 YEAR END REPORT

Finance Director Meyer stated she was there to present the City’s FY 24-25 Year-End-
Report with staff's recommendations for assignments for 25-26; provided an overview
noting that they bring the numbers to the Commission prior to their final audit and for their
input before sharing it with Council, it is also a step in their 24-25 audit process, and
provided a high-level summary of the General Fund; reported that revenues exceeded
estimates by 3% and the budget is about 2% below expenditures, and one-time funds will
level out over the next few years; stated that staff's recommendations for them that
evening was to review the information and provide input that staff can share with Council
at next week’s Council meeting; provided a slide titled Revenue which showed the City’s
major categories led by the City’s taxes, noted that taxes as a whole came in above
budget as did property tax, documentary transfer tax, UUT, and use of money and
property; stated that their transfers in is below budget but explained, in this case, it is
reflected in different ways they ended up recording revenue; reported overall they are
$3.2 million or 2.6% better than their revised budget; provided a slide titled Tax Revenue
which showed a breakdown of tax revenue including some additional years for the
Commission’s analysis; stated they will pay more attention to the City’s franchise fees
since it is a large percentage below budget and they will think about adjusting it for mid-
year; mentioned that the City’s property tax in lieu of VLF tends to be a strong revenue
source for the City; provided charts to show the City’s tax revenue; pointed out that the
City has a site specific tax agreement with three hotel properties (Residence Inn, Hilton
Garden Inn, and Homewood Suites) whereby, if they are not able to cover their debt
service and operating payments, they are able to invoice the City for the TOT that they
paid to the City; explained that last year the auditors recommended the City record TOT
as gross revenue and gross expense, which makes more sense, but stated they will see
the impact of that reclassification in the jump between 22-23 and 23-24.

Chair Woodham asked where that equation stands.

Finance Director Meyer stated the City did receive and were able to retain TOT for the
first two months of this FY and they are now back into an invoicing TOT phase with the
hotels; noted that the hotels are having challenges with revenue; showed a chart with the
City’s total tax revenue trend over the last five years; provided a slide titled Expenditure
and reported they are almost exactly in budget if transfers out were excluded; stated that
they budgeted much less generously in 24-25 than they had in prior years for salaries
and benefits combined with stronger hiring resulted in fewer vacancies and higher
spending; stated they are also seeing a full year of some of the MOU increases that
Council had adopted; provided the City’s expenditure by department and noted that all
but Fire and Community Development were within budget; explained that Fire had
additional pays, fringe benefits, and overtime that impacted their budget and they have a
better projection of that for this year; reviewed the Expenditure slide and pointed out that
the transfers out is a much higher number and reflects some of the one-time spending

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 7

14



she mentioned for 24-25; reported that they allocated one-time funds for a transfer to the
Self-Insurance Fund in 24-25 and for their $3.2 million Unfunded Liability Payment, and
they also transferred about $3 million from the City’s General Fund to the City’s Capital
Projects Fund so they could move those projects into the Capital Projects Fund (noted
that had a net zero impact on the General Fund); stated they recorded the expenses for
their payments to the City’s hotel properties in transfers out because it is not a
departmental expense.

Chair Woodham asked what categories the City could cut back on if they didn’t have the
money to fund.

Finance Director Meyer responded that the one-time funds transfers would not be done
every year, noted that the contracts and services category is often one-time projects;
explained that during budget they include one-time requests and ongoing requests and
she and the City Manager try to determine where funds for contracts and services should
be allocated; spoke about using hiring freezes and vacancies to generate savings when
needed.

Commissioner Allen asked what types of contracts fall under contracts and services.

Finance Director Meyer commented that it is across the board but gave some examples
such as consulting services, auditors, tax consultants, etc. and stated they are working
on a breakdown of contractual vs professional.

Commissioner Allen said the reason she asked is because, excluding transfers out, that’s
the one line that since 2019-2020 moved.

Finance Director Meyer reported that is the City’s bond payment for 2021A Lease
Revenue Bonds.

Commissioner Allen clarified that she is talking about Contracts and Services and not
Transfers Out on the slide; noted that it has more than doubled since 2019-2020.

Finance Director Meyer said she would have to look into that further and get more detail
to answer that.

Commissioner Allen recommended that an analysis be done on the Contracts and
Services to see why is doubled over the past 6 years and list them out and said they could
do the same for Transfers Out.

Finance Director Meyer said she would be happy to include it; noted that due to increased
costs and inflation over the last 5 years she is surprised the other categories haven't
increased more.

More discussion followed on what types of contracts are included in that category and
what types of expenses may be driving the increase in the amount.

Chair Woodham asked where was the CalPERS payment in FY 21.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 8

15



Finance Director Meyer stated it is in Fringe Benefits.
Discussion followed regarding the fringe benefit and the bond payment.

Finance Director Meyer provided a slide titled Personnel Detail (All Funds); reviewed the
categories: Permanent Salaries, Medical Insurance, Retirement Contributions, Unfunded
Accrued Liability, and 2021A Debt Service and provided more details on each; stated she
noticed the City’s budgeted payment for the 21-22 year was $15 million and they
substituted it with a $13 million bond payment and said it was going up potentially at a
significantly higher rate; clarified she was showing for all funds and not just General Fund
and wanted to capture the City’s full UAL payment.

Commissioner Allen commented that personnel is 40% of all the funds and asked what
percentage it is of General Funds.

Finance Director Meyer said she would have to calculate that but knew the Commission
was interested in looking at the pension costs over time.

Chair Woodham commented that normally personnel is a much higher percentage of
expenses than 40% and asked what he is missing.

Finance Director Meyer said her information is for purposes of looking at the City’s
retirement contributions so she did not include part-time, overtime, and the remainder of
their fringe; stated if she added all that in it would add up to the City’s personnel costs but
she focused on the permanent salaries for that evening because that is what is directly
connected to their retirement contributions.

Chair Woodham stated someone is doing a great job with holding down costs in medical
insurance.

Discussion followed.

Finance Director Meyer continued her presentation and moved on to the City’s calculation
of estimated available fund balance; explained it is what they provide to Council each
year and recommend assignments at the end of the FY; stated the City’s estimated
balance before this is about $16 million for the General Fund and it is rounded down
because they have not finalized the audit; went down each item on the slide and reported
the City’s total remaining available estimated balance is about $5.2 million.

Commissioner Allen asked if the $5 million included the $4 million reserves that the City
has.

Finance Director Meyer responded it does not because they are looking at 24-25 and
Council approved that for 25-26; clarified that she is just focused on the General Fund
Reserve and not the CalPERS Reserve.

Commissioner Allen asked if the $5 million includes the $4 million reserves.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 9

16



Finance Director Meyer stated the City has $8.6 million in reserves and clarified that it
was under Committed Items Policy-Designated Contingency.

Chair Woodham stated with $8.6 million in the contingency reserve, the City still has $8
million in the CalPERS reserve at this point.

Finance Director Meyer responded yes, as of 6/30/25; stated, when she and the City
Manager looked at the 25-26 budget, they did not have the final audited humber for 23-
24 yet and they didn’t have the numbers for the FY so they were very conservative in
projecting revenues for the end of the year and in looking at the City’s General Fund
balance; reported that, with their final audit, the General Fund balance was better than
anticipated and they brought in more revenue that they had forecasted; stated their
recommendations to Council will include: limited department requests, address known
funding gaps (replenishing the CalPERS Reserve Fund, and funding for the Harbor
Uplands Fund), and focus on replenishing where they know the City has funding needs.

Commissioner Marin asked what they are recommending for the one-time items.

Finance Director Meyer said she and the City Manager are still discussing it but the
proposal totals around a million; stated that they will post the item on Friday, Council will
look at it next Tuesday and give direction, and staff will come back to the Commission
shortly after; said she is aiming for the next meeting to provide mid-year analysis; stated
staff's recommendation is to receive and file the report, discuss, and provide any
comments that they would like staff to share with Council for next week.

Chair Woodham asked if she is recommending that they replace the entire amount in the
CalPERS Reserve Fund.

Finance Director Meyer stated the total is $5.2 million and if they replaced all $3.5 million
it would not leave a lot for them to apply to any potential adjustments at mid-year but said
it is something she and the City Manager are still discussing.

Commissioner Allen confirmed Director Meyer is presenting to Council on Tuesday and
asked if she had dollar amounts for the Recommended Use of Balance.

Commissioner Marin pointed out that they are not done yet so they can not make a
recommendation.

Commissioner Allen asked if she would have those numbers by Tuesday before she
presents to Council.

Finance Director Meyer stated yes, she would have the numbers then but she is still
discussing it with the City Manager; said it would be helpful if the Commission provided
input on what they felt is the most important for Council to allocate funds towards.

Discussion followed on the types of recommendations they could provide to Council, what
the one-time requests include, and what things the City must pay versus things that would
be nice to do.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 10

17



Finance Director Meyer said the one item that is a must pay is the AES bankruptcy of
$400,000 and the others are just smaller items related to one-time projects.

Discussion followed regarding the $4.2 million for 26-27 and the need to plan ahead and
what makes sense to hold funds back.

Chair Woodham said the thought occurs if they don’t replace the $3.5 million into the
CalPERS Reserve come 27 budget, they are going to take the rest of the CalPERS
Reserve away and there will be a zero balance; stated they should decide whether there
are comments they want to make to attach to the report regarding specific items; stated
he would be in favor of strongly advising that CalPERS Reserve Fund be replenished by
that with a full $3.5 million.

Commissioner Allen agreed with Chair Woodham and said the rest should go to items
that are a must such as the AES bankruptcy.

More discussion followed regarding using the $5.2 million towards the $3.5 CalPERS
Reserves Fund, $400,000 to the AES bankruptcy proceeding, and the rest going to UAL
payment; explanation was requested regarding the AES bankruptcy.

Finance Director Meyer said she will need to answer that at the next meeting so she can
get a briefing on where the City is at in that process.

Discussion continued on allocating the $5.2 million.

Commissioner Allen summarized that $3.5 million would go to the CalPERS Reserve
Fund, $400,000 to AES, and $1.3 million to the UAL payment and then, for budgeting
purposes if anything else goes down, they will need to look through the contracts to see
where money can be saved.

Chair Woodham asked if Director Meyer could attach their comments to her report and
she stated yes.

Commissioner Allen wanted to recommend that staff do a zero-based budgeting, which
requires justification for all expenses; commented that she believes they currently do a
line-item budgeting, which takes whatever they spent last year and base it on that;
explained her reasoning for her recommendation.

Discussion followed that the suggestion is a good idea, but it would be a huge undertaking
and that it might need to be discussed separately and not be part of the report; decided it
should be discussed separately and a good time to address it would be at the start of the
budgeting process.

Finance Director Meyer suggested they form a subcommittee, noted that staff have
started budget preparation so the earlier the Commission has recommendations related
to budget the sooner they should bring it back so they can share it with the Council early
on.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 11

18



Commissioner Allen said an analysis of why contracts have increased so much is needed
and the same for transfers out.

Finance Director Meyer said she included some details for the 24-25 in the General Fund
Financial Report which is included with the Blue Folder items they sent on Tuesday;
reiterated it only includes 24-25 and they are happy to do the transfers out detail.

Analyst Kamsvaag reported no eComments and no one online.

Motion by Commissioner Allen, seconded by Commissioner Sherbin, to allocate $3.5
million back to the borrowed reserves, $400,000 to AES, and $1.3 million to 26-27 UAL.

Motion carried 6-0-1. Commissioner Ramcharan was absent.

Motion by Commissioner Turner, seconded by Commissioner Allen, to receive and file
the Year-End Report.

Motion carried 6-0-1. Commissioner Ramcharan was absent.
J.3. CIP SUBCOMMITTEE QUESTIONS

Finance Director Meyer stated she put it on to give the CIP subcommittee a chance to
report out on their discussion and meeting with City staff.

Commissioner Turner said there was still some follow up to be done; stated the questions
they have were more to understand the procedures in place for change orders, trying to
understand discrepancies between the initial engineer estimates versus the final cost of
the project; gave some background on why the subcommittee was formed and the
guestions they had for the Planning Committee to better understand the procedures and
the approval process; stated that they found that the procedure that is in place seems to
be appropriate, it has proper thresholds in place, points where it goes to a vote, and when
it is brought to Council’s attention for voting; noted that they did spend most of their time
on one specific project; stated they have decided to take a deeper dive and look at three
specific projects (TBD by the subcommittee) to try to identify commonalities between the
processes and the reasonings behind change orders; said after they do that they will
come back with a more comprehensive report for the Commission.

Commissioner Sherbin wondered if there was any categories that they had come up with
that could serve as benchmarks for the reasons for the change orders.

Commissioner Turner said it seemed the most consistent reasoning was unexpected but
necessary discoveries during construction and provided an example; explained that the
majority of the change orders seemed to be based out of necessity rather than enhancing
the scale of the original work.

Some discussion followed.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 12



Commissioner Jeste differed in opinion and felt the whole planning process needs a major
overhaul; stated the project they viewed was issued on August 17, 1993 which is 33 years
old and lots of things have changed and the City has not changed their processes; stated
that he still has not gotten an answer on the change order itself; noted that it makes sense
if you have an unplanned emergency but reported that he went through 15 projects that
were completed in 2025 and very little money was spent on unplanned emergencies;
stated that he found most of the projects had a change in scope because funds became
available or because some other things cropped up and they just lumped it in with the
existing project and issue a change order; stated that it bothers him that due to change
orders there is no incentive or reason to go out and solicit bids so the contract is given to
the same contractor; said what makes it worse is on the major projects the scope gets
changed because funding becomes available and now the contractor knows that there
are additional funds available, how much is available, and that they are not going to go
out for bids; voiced his concerns that 80% of the money the City is spending is on change
orders where there are no competitive bids and no incentives to give them the best price.

Commissioner Allen said that is the main issue that was never addressed.

Commissioner Jeste stated that the projects he looked at went up to 5 times as high as it
started out and the money spent was not on unplanned emergencies; said it shows two
problems: 1) the City does not do enough good planning to begin with, and 2) when the
City realizes that there are other things that can be done or should be done because
funds become available they just lump that into a bunch of change orders; highlighted a
project on Manhattan Beach Blvd and Inglewood Ave. intersection had five change orders
lumped together and the engineer’s authority was increased to accommodate the amount
so he didn’t have to go to the City Council to get approval; felt it has gotten out of control
and the question he has been asking is why isn’t the City getting bids for change orders.

Chair Woodham wanted to focus on one of the things Commissioner Jeste said which
was 80% of the expenditure for CIP is change orders and asked if that is for one project
or across the board.

Commissioner Jeste stated it is for all completed projects in 2025 and based on the data
Finance Director Meyer provided.

Finance Director Meyer asked if he is comparing initial project costs to final project costs
because those aren’t all change orders; clarified that they are additions to funding but
aren’t specifically change orders.

Commissioner Jeste said all subsequent appropriations is what he is including.

Finance Director Meyer stated subsequent appropriations are slightly different than
change orders.

Discussion followed that the main issue is that there is no additional bidding regardless
for 80% of those.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 13

20



Commissioner Jeste reviewed the amounts from the data Director Meyer provided, stated
subsequent appropriations accounted for 80% of the total cost of the projects that were
completed and he did not see any project where the City went out for bids twice; stated
additional work was given to the same contractor.

Commissioner Allen clarified that they are not questioning the process of change orders,
they are questioning the reason they spend 80% more without bidding.

Commissioner Turner stated part of what the awarded contractor presents in his proposal
is an itemized list, a cost per material used based on square footage, or based on different
types of materials and as change orders come up they are still held accountable to that
same itemized list.

Commissioner Jeste said in two specific projects the scopes changed completely and
there was no similarity between what they started out with and what they changed with.

Commissioner Turner stated that in some instances there was a specific budget allocated
for a project, then additional funding during the project was later made available, and the
Council decided to expand the scope of work; said what Commissioner Jeste is
suggesting is that, if the scope of work is increased, the additional scope should be bid
out to make sure they are getting the most competitive bid, which he agrees with and they
asked that question; stated that the response was that the contractor is held to the
itemized price list originally submitted when they were awarded the contract, accounting
for the amount of time and cost in stopping the project in mid-project to go through the
bidding process, and then if another contractor is awarded the additional scope of work
then they would need to spend time and resources to clean up the original contractor’s
crew and equipment, and overall the timeframe to complete the projects would probably
exceed the difference in bidding out the additional work.

Commissioner Jeste said most of the time the same contractor would likely continue but
at least he would be more careful in bidding the second time; referenced the Manhattan
Beach Blvd. and Inglewood Ave. intersection project and said the scope of work
completely changed so there should have been no reason not to go out for bids.

Commissioner Turner stated if the scope of work increases it is not the decision of the
contractor.

More discussion followed.

Commissioner Turner confirmed that what Commissioner Jeste is saying is to go and take
it to a bidding process just to create leverage to renegotiate the existing contractor.

Commissioner Jeste said absolutely and said that outsiders well versed in how
contractors operate have said contractors know the City is not going out for competitive
bids so they know it is their chance to make money.

Commissioner Allen opined it is an RFP problem and whoever wrote the planning or the
RFP did not have the right scope or the right oversight.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 14

21



Commissioner Turner spoke about the project they concentrated on and in that case the
engineer estimated the original scope of work based on funding that was available and
later on more funding became available, and the Council voted to expand the scope of
the work.

Commissioner Allen opined that whoever is leading should foresee what else needs to
be done and what the additional cost would be; felt it is a planning issue.

More discussion followed regarding the engineer’s role, Council’s role, and how estimates
are determined and that the plan may need to be changed.

Commissioner Sherbin commented that it might be a difference between coming out with
a RFP that’s specific and using this process as a placeholder; used the Fire and Police
bond as an example and stated the bond was passed without any specific plans or defined
objective and no real idea of the amount it would cost was known; pointed out that unless
that discipline is put in place at the very beginning of the RFP, you are dealing with
variance analysis with ending project costs and they are going to say the scope changed
so the dollar amount changed; stated that unless there is a defined RFP that is being bid
against, you can’t make that analysis.

Commissioner Allen stated that to get another bid in the middle of a project would take
another five to six months because of the process.

More discussion followed. Commissioner Jeste stated that is why they need to do a better
job at planning.

Commissioner Turner provided a scenario with an original scope of work for three traffic
lights for an intersection, the engineer gives an estimate for those three lights, and during
that scope of work more funding becomes available and now the City says lets go ahead
and do 10 traffic lights; stated that would be a significant amount of money to show on a
change order, the contractor would be accountable to the prices on the list, but with
Commissioner Jeste’s analysis he is saying that the engineer should have had a better
understanding of the scope of work; asked in his scenario how the engineer would have
estimated for the 10 traffic lights when they did not know the end goal was going to be 10
and not just the three; said that the one project they concentrated on during their meeting
had a similar type of case; mentioned that during the meeting the subcommittee decided
they would dive deeper into two or three projects looking for consistency in the scenarios
and that is what they will report back on after doing the research.

Commissioner Jeste stated he looked at about five different projects and they were all
completely different from each other; referenced the Manhattan Beach Blvd. and
Inglewood intersection again and said in that project they added new designs and new
equipment and they had five change orders that they lumped together, which they gave
all to the same contractor; spoke of the project being complicated but that it should have
been streamlined, given more thought, and more participation by more than one
contractor; felt there is no incentive for the administration to get more bids because
change orders are approved with no questions by the City Council.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 15

22



Commissioner Allen asked Commissioner Jeste to share the projects he looked at with
the subcommittee.

Commissioner Turner stated the Manhattan Beach Blvd. and Inglewood intersection
would be a good project to add to their sample size.

Commissioner Allen stated Jim Mueller had a project to share.

More discussion followed regarding other projects Commissioner Jeste reviewed and the
need to share those with the subcommittee they had formed.

Chair Woodham noted that he is having difficulty with the discussion because they need
to have examples of various scenarios and the percent of the total projects that fit into
each category; stated it would matter to see if the abusive system takes place 1 out of 50
times or 49 out of 50 times; suggested additional work is needed by the subcommittee to
look at specific projects and come back with a report of the findings; commented that he
finds it hard to believe that anyone in Public Works would not be concerned about
overrunning the budget but their objective is to find issues that cause them to suggest a
change is needed in the planning process or the approval process; stated he has not
seen enough documented evidence yet of abuse to say there is a problem but there may
be a potential problem.

More discussion followed.

Chair Woodham stated the next step would be for the subcommittee to finish the process
of reviewing the projects, including the ones Commissioner Jeste mentioned, and then
they should have the same discussion after that report is finished.

More discussion followed on how they would proceed with the research for the
subcommittee.

Chair Woodham invited public comments.

Jim Mueller stated the real issue is who controls the expenditure of money in the City;
reported having dialogue with Andy Winje and said he admires him because he is making
use of the existing controls and management of money to get his job done in the way he
sees fit; referenced the Anita St. project and explained that Public Works had a grant from
Metro of $2.5 million and his original estimate for the project was $230,000; stated, during
his discussion with Andy Winje, he was told that staff kept finding things that could make
that particular intersection better; said that he has no doubt that Andy Winje is acting in
the best interests of the City, but the problem he sees is, that of the four change orders
for that project, only one of them went to the Council and three of them were initiated
internally; noted that all the change orders were done in accordance with procurement
regulations of the City but that the project ended up costing over $700,000; stated that is
not a unique situation and that a lot of the projects have the same characteristics;
suggested that the Commission advises the Council on how to get better control of the
expenditure of money.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 16

23



Chair Woodham commented that he agreed with Mr. Mueller; stated that they need to
proceed with the subcommittee completing its work and bringing the findings back for
discussion and then they can make recommendations, if any, to the Council.

More discussion followed.
Analyst Kamsvaag reported no eComments and no one online.

Motion by Commissioner Marin, seconded by Commissioner Allen, to continue the item
to the next meeting.

Motion carried 6-0-1. Commissioner Ramcharan was absent.
J.4. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROCUREMENT DATA

Finance Director Meyer said that it was continued on the agenda but staff did not promise
to bring the next set of data identifying all the professional versus contractual services
and informed the Commission that they do not have it that evening; asked Commissioner
Allen to share a spreadsheet she had shared with the group and reported it was included
as an attachment to the packet.

Commissioner Allen asked Jim Mueller if he could come up and explain some numbers
he had sent and present the item.

Jim Mueller reported he had gotten the numbers when the Financial Transparency Facility
was up on the City website and got the proposed numbers from the Proposed Budget;
reported finding that 8% to 10% of the City’s budget is spent on Professional Services,
noted that there is a variance from the numbers that Finance Director Meyer provided;
said from the numbers he got $12.4 million was spent, in 2025, on Professional Services;
stated that 41% of the 2026 budget for Professional Services is proposed to be on Comm
Services which he assumes is Communication Services; said as a CFO that would be the
first place he would investigate to look at to see if processes are being followed that make
the most of the City’s money; explained in more detail what he uncovered and noted that
some of the investigations might include evaluating how contracts are awarded, felt the
City’s procurement regulations are loosey goosey, and according to the municipal code
no competitive bidding is needed for professional services; voiced concern that at Council
meetings quotes given do not have explanations for how the number was determined:;
suggested that the Commission focus on the adjustment of the procurement regulations;
gave his thoughts on the lack of bidding for the professional services contracts and noted
that the procurement regulations and the municipal code are more than 10 years old.

Chair Woodham stated that they had decided at the last meeting to have Finance Director
Meyer gather information on this item to show the Commission what annual expenditures
the City has had in the Professional Services category so they can attempt to identify
what percent is awarded to non-competitive bidding; opined that is where they should
start; asked Director Meyer to let them know what she could get them that data and then
they could bring it back as a discussion item; spoke more about the need to have the data
to analyze before they can determine if there is abuse or wasting of money.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 17

24



Commissioner Allen commented that they are not necessarily choosing the cheapest
consultant, but the City does want to look for the best value; pointed out that if consultants
know that the City is going to analyze their contract, and there are competitors out there,
they will be more careful on the prices they offer.

Analyst Kamsvaag reported no eComments and no one online.

Motion by Commissioner Turner, seconded by Commissioner Allen, to continue the item
to some future meeting once they have the data.

Motion carried 6-0-1. Commissioner Ramcharan was absent.

K. COMMISSION MEMBER ITEMS AND FUTURE COMMISSION AGENDA
TOPICS

Commissioner Allen reported that she would not be at the March meeting and asked to
add a discussion item regarding the Finance section on the City’s website on the April
meeting.

Finance Director Meyer asked what specific part of the website she wanted to discuss.

Commissioner Allen stated she wanted to know what information is available for the public
to see regarding the budget.

Chair Woodham said they should discuss the new balance or increased balance in UAL
that the City took care of with the bond issue in the beginning of fiscal 22; reported that
they refinanced the project four years ago and went from 6.8% to 2.8% on $215 million
so there was a substantial savings; reported they now have about $50 million UAL and
interest rates have changed so it is worth looking at; stated that CalPERS has
underperformed the 6.8% by almost 2% per year and compounded over the last four
years equals the $50 million in additional UAL; said he did some quick numbers at $50
million at 4% saves the City about $700,000 a year; asked to put it on the agenda for a
future discussion.

Commissioner Allen asked to continue the Professional Services discussion at the April
meeting since she would not be there for the March meeting; noted that the April meeting
would be on the 23,

L. ADJOURNMENT

Motion by Commissioner Marin, seconded by Commissioner Allen, to adjourn the meeting
at 8:40 p.m.

Motion carried 6-0-1. Commissioner Ramcharan was absent.

The next meeting of the Redondo Beach Budget & Finance Commission will be a regular
meeting to be held at 6:30 p.m. on March 12, 2026, in the Redondo Beach Council
Chambers, at 415 Diamond Street, Redondo Beach, California.

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 18

25



All written comments submitted via eComment are included in the record and available
for public review on the City website.

Respectfully submitted:

Stephanie Meyer
Finance Director

MINUTES

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMISSION
Thursday, February 12, 2026

Page 19

26



Administrative
Report

H.1., File # BF26-0329

Meeting Date: 3/12/2026

TITLE
For eComments and Emails Received from the Public

Page 1 of 1

27



Administrative
Report

J.1., File # BF26-0314 Meeting Date: 3/12/2026
To: BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMISSION

From: STEPHANIE MEYER, FINANCE DIRECTOR

TITLE

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING FY 2025-26 MIDYEAR BUDGET
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Staff will submit the report as a Blue Folder item.

Page 1 of 1

28



Administrative
Report

J.2,, File # BF26-0335 Meeting Date: 3/12/2026

To: BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMISSION
From: STEPHANIE MEYER, FINANCE DIRECTOR

TITLE
DISCUSSION REGARDING THE CIP SUBCOMMITTEE ACTIVITY

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Members of the CIP Subcommittee, Commissioners Jeste, Ramcharan, and Turner, to provide a
verbal update on the progress of the subcommittee.

Page 1 of 1

29



Administrative
Report

J.3., File # BF26-0334 Meeting Date: 3/12/2026
To: BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMISSION

From: STEPHANIE MEYER, FINANCE DIRECTOR

TITLE

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING INPUT AND SUGGESTIONS FOR THE CITY
COUNCIL'S CONSIDERATION DURING THE UPCOMING STRATEGIC PLANNING SESSION

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Since 1998, the City of Redondo Beach has been committed to the strategic planning process, which
allows the City Council to establish goals and objectives for both short and long-term planning. A
strategic plan serves as a guiding document that helps prioritize the City Council’s goals and
initiatives and allows staff to focus its resources appropriately.

The City Council is scheduled to review its current Strategic Plan (attached) in March, and determine
if there should be any changes to an updated plan that would cover the next six-to-twelve-month
period. This discussion item provides the Budget and Finance Commission (Commission) an
opportunity to share its desires for projects or initiatives with the City Council so that they can be
considered during the City Council’'s upcoming deliberations.

Staff recommends the Commission consider whether it would like to provide input to the City Council
during its upcoming strategic plan discussion. Should the Commission have items to share with the
City Council, staff requests the Commission provide direction on its desired method of sharing this
information, including through staff, who will share the Commission’s desires directly with the City
Manager’s office prior to the upcoming discussion; or, through the development of a letter that would
be written by selected commissioners and staff.

ATTACHMENTS
Current Strategic Plan

Page 1 of 1
30



Three-Year Priority Areas & 10-Month Objectives
June 2025 — March 2026

CM-= City Manager ATCM=Assistant to City Manager CD=Community Development CS=Community Services FD=Fire Department FS=Financial Services HR=Human Resources IT=Information Technology LIB=Library PD=Police Department
PW=Public Works WED=Waterfront and Economic Development CA=City Attorney CC=City Clerk CT=City Treasurer

Priority Area 1: Economic Vitality

Goal 1.1 Enhance the Waterfront

# When Who Objectives Done On Target | Revised Notes
This item will trail discussions associated
with the vacant commercial space.

Investigate the options and costs associated with improving the Pier Parking Structure to allow for %

1 | March 1, 2026 WED/PW
redevelopment.

Identify strategies to proactively market and lease the identified commercial opportunity sites in Staff appeared before the City Council during

2 | July 15,2025 WED : X the July 8 and August 12 closed session
the Harbor and Pier area. X .
agendas to discuss the strategies.
Pre-design studies have been completed, and
3 September 1, WED Complete the pre-design engineering studies needed to construct the new public boat launch and X staff met with each Councilmember during the

2025 present the results to the City Council for review. weeks of September 8 and September 15, to
present the findings.

Local consideration of approval of the Lagoon’s
CDP and phase one construction plan set is on
schedule. Coastal Commission review and
approval is still TBD.

Staff prepared a discussion item for City
Council consideration on November 4, 2025.
Direction was given to prepare the parking
analysis needed to consider modifying the LCP
requirements.

Staff is working with the City Council to update
Title 12 language. The scope of the initial
ordinance project has expanded, and staff
anticipates completing this item in June 2026.
The Option Agreement was drafted and sent to
the Marine Mammal Care Center (MMCC) for
review in early July. Staff met with MMCC
representatives on September 4 to answer
questions and walk through the document.
MMCC submitted initial comments and redlines
X on September 14, followed by additional
revisions on September 29. Staff presented
MMCC'’s counter proposal to the City Council
as an October 7 closed session item. In
coordination with outside legal counsel, staff
has drafted updated redline language based on
City Council direction and sent the redlines to

Complete the entitlement approval process for all phases of the Seaside Lagoon Rehabilitation
WED, PW  |Project and complete the plans and specifications for Phase 1 of the project needed for the X
Coastal Development Permit.

December 31,
2025

Identify the process and cost to consider adjusting the Local Coastal Program requirements for X

5 | October 1, 2025 WED, CD King Harbor Marina parking.

FD, PD, CA,

6 | March 1, 2026 WED

Research policy options and prepare a draft Safety Ordinance for rental watercraft in King Harbor. X

September 1, Complete consideration of the preliminary Marine Mammal Center/Waterfront Education Center
WED L
2025 Property Use and Fundraising Agreement.

City of Redondo Beach Strategic Plan 2025-2026 | Page 10f9 31



MMCC. MMCC submitted redlines in
December 2025. City Council discussed the
redlines in closed session on December 16,
2025 and formed a subcommittee to finalize a
counter. The subcommittee held a meeting
on January 15, 2026, created a counter
offer, and staff returned to City Council on
February 3, 2026 for final review. Staff sent
the City’s counter proposal to MMCC on
February 5, 2026. Staff awaits a response
from MMCC.

Present a report to the City Council comparing the City’s harbor/marine management operating

Staff anticipates presenting this item to Council

8 |October 1,2025)  WED, FD model/organizational structure to others. X |in summer of 2026
: . ) . Staff anticipates bringing this as a Closed
P rttod the opt d t the f Gold’'s G te fi
9 | October 1, 2025 WED thr:ila;;ebzrr%oelar?d;scuss e options and process to remove the former Gold’s Gym site from X |Session item in summer of 2026,
Goal 1.2: Revitalize Artesia Boulevard
# When Who Objectives Done On Target | Revised Notes
N . _— . . . The policy discussion was held by the City
Complete the policy discussions for adjusting the FAR Ratio and implementing property Council on Audust 5. 2025. The Gouncil
10 |October 1, 2025 CD investment incentives along the Artesia/Aviation Corridor, in conjunction with the General Plan X : ff gust o, L .
Phase 2 Update directed staff to prepare an ordllnqnce allowing
' up to 1.5 FAR along Artesia/Aviation.
On August 5, the City Council directed staff to
prepare an ordinance that would eliminate
. . . " . , . commercial parking requirements along
1" September 1, cD Prowdg a report to _the City Cc_)uncn dgtalllng the |mpact the changes made to Artesia Blvd parking X Artesia. The draft ordinance will be reviewed by
2025 regulations are having on business reinvestment in the area. . o
the Planning Commission in September and
will return to City Council for consideration of
adoption in late October.
: : : v The ARTesia Strategic Plan was presented
December 31, Provide a status report on the public art procurement effort on Artesia Blvd. by the City’s newly- .
12 2025 CS, WED, PW |, .4 art consultant. X to and approved by Council on 12/16/25.
A draft ordinance was presented to City
Council for preliminary feedback on
Provide a report to the City Council on the process to study and consider implementing rooftop January 6, 2026. The Draft Ordinance will
13 | October 1, 2025 CD dining; lot merger incentives that would encourage property reinvestment/revitalization; and X  |be reviewed by the Planning Commission
options to enhance the quality of business signage along the boulevards. on February 19, 2026. It is anticipated that it
will be adopted by the City Council in May
2026.
Goal 1.3: Position Redondo Beach as a Destination for Business Investment
# When Who Objectives Done On Target | Revised Notes
An Economic Development Subcommittee met
WED, CD, with two commercial development teams on
November 1 ATCM, Convene an Economic Development Working Group to help recruit/retain businesses and assist four occasions to tour Artesia Blvd, the
14 2025 ’ MAYOR+  [staff in identifying and analyzing conditions/regulations/processes that exist in the City that may X Waterfront, and PCH. Staff are currently
COUNCIL  |impede business reinvestment and report the preliminary results to the City Council. working on a contract with a prospective third-
SUBCOMM. party consultant to perform a void analysis

along Artesia Blvd to identify desirable uses

City of Redondo Beach Strategic Plan 2025-2026 | Page 2 0f9 32




that generate foot and vehicle traffic. The
consultant would also catalog parcel owners
with contact information at key nodes, promote
parcel assemblage, and contact owners to
discuss new development standard regulations
meant to promote redevelopment. The
agreement with AREAS was approved by City
Council in early December. The results of
AREAS’ information gathering will be reviewed
by the subcommittee and presented to the City
Council when complete.

Support proactive development in the City with a focus on business retention and enhancing

A report of the City's economic development

15 Decezrglz)gr 31, CD,WED |marketing efforts and outreach to potential businesses and provide a report to the City Council on efforts will be provided with the above
the status of these efforts. recommended agreement.
. . " - . . Following the official launch of the marketing
MAYOR, WED, |Create a Major Events working group to pursue opportunities and attract activities associated with . )
16| March 1, 2026 CD, ATCM  |the 2026 World Cup and LA28 Olympics, as appropriate. website on November 4, 2025, staff is

developing plans and activities for next year.

Future Goal 1.4: Revitalize the Pacific Coast Highway Corridor

City of Redondo Beach Strategic Plan 2025-2026 | Page 30f9 33




Priority Area 2: Public Safety and Community Well-Being

Goal 2.1 Implement Measure FP (Reconstruct City Fire and Police Facilities)
# When Who Objectives Done On Target | Revised Notes
Council approved the first amendment to
the Agreement with Griffin Structures for
Owner’s Representative and Program
Management Services for Phase 1 of
Complete selection of the firm to serve as the City’s Owner’'s Representative and Bond Program Measure FP Implementation on January 20,
17 | August 1, 2025 ATCM . . . . X 2026.
Manager and present the contract to City Council for consideration of approval.
RFQ/Ps for both the Fire and Police
portions of Measure FP Implementation
were released on January 29, 2026 with
proposals due for both on March 13, 2026.
Following selection of the Owner’s Representative and Bond Program Manager, work with the PRA.G s standing by t(.) advise the City as the
FIN, ATCM, PW,| ~., ; - : . . : : o funding needs and project schedule are
18 | March 1, 2026 City's Municipal Financial Advisor to develop a strategy to appropriately time the City’s bond X X ; .
IT,PD, FD, CT |. . h ! developed in the Strategic Planning phase of
issuance to complete the projects included in Measure FP. . )
Measure FP implementation.
Staff held a preliminary meeting with the City’s
Bond Team on January 16, including the
19 | March 1, 2026 ATCM. CA Prepare the selectlor) guidelines and resolution to form a Citizens Oversight Committee to review X Mun|0|pal Advisor and Bpnd Disclosure .
bond-related expenditures. Council. Bond Issuance is not expected until
late 2026. Staff anticipates establishing the
Bond Oversight Committee in Q3/4 of this year.
The City was notified that the application
Complete the studies/design work needed to prepare the federal grant application for funding to was notsele?ted for ti.je grant for the EYZS
. . . : . . . Cycle. Staff is preparing for a resubmittal
20 | July1,2025 PW, PD replace the City’s Police Shooting Range and engage appropriate outside/partnership agencies, X ; , .
pending release of the notice of funding opportunity for this year's cycle when the submission
' date is confirmed by the Federal Gov. The
City is also tracking other possible sources.
Goal 2.2: Strengthen the City’s Mental Health Response and Community Support Systems
# When Who Objectives Done On Target | Revised Notes
The report was presented to the City Council
on September 2, followed by approval of an
. . Y " . . agreement with Clear on September 9. On
21 September 1, CA ED. PD Present a report. tg .the City Cquncﬂ on the City’s efforts to utilize grant fundlng tq hlre/procure a X October 7, 2025, the City Council also
2025 mental health clinician to provide targeted response to mental health-related incidents in the City. ; .
approved an agreement with HERO to provide
consultation services and deploy a weekend
pilot team
o T The City of Hermosa Beach has agreed to
22 | August1,2025 | CA FD, PD Explore partnership with Hermosa Beach that would pool resources to enhance the City’s ability to X Partner with the City to improve the City's
respond to mental health issues. - ;
ability to respond to mental health issues.
Goal 2.3: Further Enhance the City’s Approach to Addressing Homelessness
# ] When [ Who [ Objectives [ Done [ OnTarget [ Revised | Notes

City of Redondo Beach Strategic Plan 2025-2026 | Page 4 of 9 34




A bid opening occurred on November 5, 2025
and all bids exceeded budget by a wide
margin. Additionally, the apparent low bid was
protested. Staff is processing the Protest and

23 | March 1, 2026 PW, CA Complete construction of the pallet shelter expansion project. X P . : :
will bring a recommendation to City Council
once that process has been completed. The
City Attorney’s Office is also seeking additional
funding.

24 | March 1, 2026 cs Eﬁﬂlﬁéﬁ options to secure funding to support family supportive housing and report back to the City X
The Housing Authority approved the program

. . . agreement with Department of Children and

25 | August 1, 2025 CS Develop a program to implement foster youth vouchers and report back to the City Council. X Family Services at the June 17, 2025 Coundil
meeting.

Goal 2.4: Continue to Leverage Technology to Enhance Public Safety, Emergency Response, and Community

Resilience
# When Who Objectives Done On Target | Revised Notes

L ' . . The FAA autonomous waiver has been
26 | March 1, 2026 PD Update th(_a City's Drone First Responder agreement with Aerodome after the company obtains the X acquired. The Police Department is identifying
FAA certificate waiver for autonomous drone use. . ;
funding for the agreement’s amended cost.
October 31 Staff plans to present the new policy as a

27 2025 ’ IT, PD Investigate options to modermnize the City video camera platform and consolidate existing systems. X receive and file item in March 2026.

. — . . . The product assessment is complete and

28 February 1, FD, IT Complete additional re.sea.rch on the fgnctlonahty and costs associated with implementing the X Tablet Command was identified as the most

2026 Tablet Command Application for the Fire Department.

suitable product available at this time.

City of Redondo Beach Strategic Plan 2025-2026 | Page 50f 9 35




Goal 3.1: Rehabilitate City Roads and Critical Public Facilities

When

Who

Objectives

Done

On Target

Revised

Notes

29

December 31,
2025

PW

Identify the cost and process to inventory the condition of City facilities for future implementation of
an asset management system.

Staff is exploring software providers and
pricing and expects to procure a software
package in FY 2026-27. A Facilities
Assessment will need to be funded in FY
2026-27 or beyond.

30

December 1,
2025

PW, ATCM

Pursue grant funding for energy-related infrastructure improvements.

Staff continues to explore opportunities to
secure grant funding.

31

March 1, 2026

PW

Research and provide a report to Council on the options to enhance the City’s Street rehabilitation
program.

Goal 3.2: Expand and Enhance Public Spaces, Amenities, and Programs

When

Who

Objectives

Done

On Target

Revised

Notes

32

April 1, 2026

CS, PW

Execute the Wilderness Park Master Plan as funded.

The ribbon cutting for the Lower Pond is
scheduled for March 19, 2026. Staff will
assess remaining CIP funds and determine
next steps for execution of the Master Plan.

33

October 1, 2025

CS, PW

Complete conceptual design of the Franklin Park playground improvements.

The Franklin Park All-Abilities Playground
Working Group held meetings from June
through September 2025. Council approved
the proposed design on December 2, 2025
and requested additional amenities. Staff
has worked with the playground design
company to determine if additional
amenities are feasible, and what cost
impacts these would have. Staff received
final design and costs on January 26, 2026,
and has begun preparing the contract for
Council consideration.

34

November 1,
2025

CS/IPW

Explore options to add signage to lto Park that draws inspiration from signage found in America’s
National Parks.

Staff received information from Public
Amenities Commissioners regarding signage
language used by the FDR Presidential
Museum and subsequently contacted the
Museum for additional information. The City
has been granted permission to replicate the
historical content for usage on signs. Staff

City of Redondo Beach Strategic Plan 2025-2026 | Page 6 of 9 36




acquired quotes from three sign production
companies and identified the most appropriate
vendor. Language for the Ito Park signage is
being finalized with the assistance of the
Bringing History to the Community
subcommittee of the Public Amenities
Commission. Installation is anticipated in late
2025.

Staff presented an update to Council on

35 Decezrglz)gr 31, CS Enhance available programming in the City’s Teen Center. X Teen Center operations and programming
on January 6, 2026.
The most recent negotiation update was
November 1, Provide a report on the status of negotiations with RBUSD regarding shared service and facility provided to City Council in October. An
36 CM, ATCM, FS X ” )
2025 agreements. additional update is scheduled for closed
session on November 18, 2025.
) - . . N Staff presented this item at the February 10,
37 | January 1, 2026 ATCM Research and provide Council with a report regarding the qext steps to |mplement a licensing % 2026 City Council Meeting and received
agreement to produce and market City-branded apparel using the updated City logo. R
follow up direction.
38 | October 1. 2025 ATCM Prepare a report for Council to discuss the process and cost associated with updating the City flag X gta;ff prgsented th.f repqrt at the October 7,
’ with the new logo and also incorporating the logo on other City-maintained flags and banners. 025, City Council meefing.
Goal 3.3: Enhance Alternative Transportation Options
# When Who Objectives Done OnTarget | Revised Notes
The project was advertised for bidding on
September 18, 2025 and the bid opening was
scheduled for October 16, 2025. No bids were
39 |January 1, 2026 PW Award the construction contract to implement the City’s Local Travel Network (LTN). X received. Council awarded a change order to
an existing contractor on December 9, 2025 to
have this work done with expected completion
in July 2026.
40 December 1, PW Develop a strategy to deploy available funding for bike lane repainting to enhance bicycle safety X én agglnda gem WT)S p;eszeonztgd to the City
2025 and provide a report on the status of the City's implementation of the Bicycle Master Plan. ouncil on ecember 2,
: : : o o : ; An agenda item was presented to the City
December 1, Provide a report to the City Council on the status of the City’s active transportation and micro- .
ML 005 PW" | mobility projects included in the CIP, X Council on December 2, 2025
o . The item will be presented to the City
F 1 Analyze BCT f th h h Id enh h
42 ebzrgggy , cs g g:rys/ﬁap- CT routes and determine if there are other route options that could enhance yout X | Council for discussion on March 3, 2026.

Future Goal 3.4: Develop Long-Range Plans to Modernize City Facilities, Including the Public Works Yard and City Hall

City of Redondo Beach Strategic Plan 2025-2026 | Page 7 of 9 37




Priority Area 4: Customer-Centered Service Delivery

Goal 4.1: Improve Customer Service by Expanding the City’s Use of Digital Tools and Online Services

# When Who Objectives Done On Target | Revised Notes
Work with Departments to determine the records and processes that can be digitized in order to Staff p r.'esented an update to the (;:ty
improve operations and meet retention and disposition requirements. Develop a plan to digitize Council on February 3, 2026. While the
43 | January 1, 2026 CC,IT . . . . s X targeted goals for the FY 2025-26 have been
City records, make them more easily accessible to the public, and provide a progress report to the R . . ; ;
. . met, this is an ongoing project which will
City Council. !
continue for several years.
Following product selection, staff has struggled
44 | March 1, 2026 CC,IT Research software options to improve the workflow for public records act requests. X to negotiate appropriate contract terms. Staff is
continuing to assess other options.
. ! o The implementation of the new Agenda
5| PO co,marow |SmEle el e e g rageen St o seanine X arsamentysm s vy vt gove
P P g g scheduled for March/April of 2026.
September 1 Develop a plan to prioritize and implement new online processes to improve the functionality of the A‘task force.hafs been created to gpdate the
46 ' IT, ATCM . . . . . , X X City's web site in an effort to provide more
2025 City website and enhance service delivery, including the possible use of Al.
accurate results for the chat bot to leam.
: : . . The system is tentatively scheduled to begin
47 | March 1, 2026 IT. ATCM Implement the Access Redondo App update and make it easier for community members to submit X

customer requests.

user acceptance testing mid-February.

City of Redondo Beach Strategic Plan 2025-2026 | Page 8 of 9 38



Priority Area 5: Community Stewardship

Goal 5.1: Advance Environmental Sustainability and Climate Resilience

# When Who Objectives Done On Target | Revised
Staff presented this item to the Public Works
and Sustainability Commission in September
48 November 1, PW Inventory the City’s tree canopy and present a discussion item to the City Council to determine the X 2025 and to the City Council on December 9,
2025 best strategies to enhance the tree canopy in the future. 2025. Focus will be on City Trees and
providing improved and customer friendly
access to educational materials.
. . A contract amendment was approved on July
49 | January 1, 2026 PW Select and hire a consultant needed to study and update the City’s Sewer System Management X 15, 2025. The SSMP will be presented to
Plan. )
Council by June 2026.
On October 7, 2025 the City Council approved
a CFA Grant Agreement for $250,000 of
charging equipment for electrical vehicles. An
February 1 additional Grant from SCE to provide charging
50 2022’ ’ ATCM, PW  |Continue to advance efforts to install additional EV charging stations throughout the City. X infrastructure at the City’s Public Works Yard
was approved by the City Council on
November 18, 2025. A purchase order for the
necessary charging equipment was also
approved by City Council.
The report was presented to the City Council
September 1, Provide a status report on the City's California Coastal Commission on September .16' 2025. On October 7, 2025,
51 WED : Co N - X the City Council approved a grant agreement
2025 LCP Local Assistance Grant Program grant application, including climate resiliency. . o 7
with the Coastal Commission, securing
$500,000 in grant funding.
Goal 5.2: Preserve and Promote the City’s Historic Resources and Neighborhood Character
# When Who Objectives Done On Target | Revised Notes
. . . . e . This item was discussed as part of the January
52 November 1, CD, CA Proylde a report to the City Council on possible updates to the City’s Historic Preservation X 6, 2026 City Council meeting. Direction to staff
2025 Ordinance. ; ; °
was provided by City Council.
. e . The historic resources survey was discussed
53 | March 1, 2026 cD Prepare a (?ontract fqr complehon of a Citywide Historical Resources Survey and present it to the X as part of the January 6, 2026 item. No further
City Council for consideration of approval. ! ’ o
action on the survey is scheduled at this time.
54 | October 1, 2025 cD Review and present options to Council related to updating parking regulations in the Riviera X This item is tentatively scheduled for discussion

Village as part of a larger discussion regarding preferred business uses in the Village.

at a City Council meeting in March 2026.

City of Redondo Beach Strategic Plan 2025-2026 | Page 90f9 39




	Agenda
	E.1.
	F.1.
	F.1. - BF Commission Affidavit 2026-03-12.pdf
	F.2.
	F.2. - 021226_RDB_BudgetFinance Commission_Minutes ML.pdf
	H.1.
	J.1.
	J.2.
	J.3.
	J.3. - Current Strategic Plan.pdf

